	PBDA-2023-02 RFP - Geographic Data for use as a Broadband Serviceable Location Fabric
	Questions and Answers
1. Will you be starting with the State’s address data set, or are you looking to procure a completely new base dataset?
0. We are looking to procure an address dataset which has hopefully been run through USPS CASS Address Validation services

1. Will you be building the maps and are simply requesting the raw data, or did you want a full-service web-based solution?
1. We are building any web applications/maps. We are simply requesting the underlying data as specified in the RFP. If the vendor has additional data pertaining to broadband serviceable locations or broadband availability, that should also be included in the deliverable. 
1. How many local government data sources should we expect to leverage for authoritative address and parcel data conflation? 
2. The intent of this request for proposals is to procure statewide datasets for parcel/cadastral data, building footprints, and geocoded address points. The Offeror may leverage existing data from local and county governments, but the Authority shall not furnish data for the Offeror. See section I-5 for additional requirements from the RFP. 
1. Are there any expected milestones and dates within the period of performance? 
3. A purchase order is anticipated to be issued within 30 days of the selection of an Offeror. Data delivery to the Authority should be provided within 10 business days of the purchase order being issued. Section I-6.B.3 of the RFP states to provide an description of how often the data is updated/refreshed. These data refresh cycles will be considered ongoing milestones throughout the course of the contract. 

1. What data sources will PBDA accept for broadband availability information? 
4. It is expected that the Offeror will leverage existing datasets pertaining to broadband availability and service at the address level. This can be from prior FCC, USDA, and other applicable broadband grant programs. If the Offeror has access to infrastructure data, they may leverage that as well. It is expected that a methodology file will provide for explanation of how broadband availability information was derived. 
1. With regard to Hold Harmless provision (V.23 Contract-019.1), would the Commonwealth accept the insertion of the word “negligently” between the words “activities” and “performed?” 
5. No.

1. In Sections I-5 and I-7, the Authority speaks to the sharing of the dataset with entities outside of the Authority.  Can the Authority  give any guidance as to the intended entities it would seek to share the dataset with?  Would this be other Commonwealth agencies, or Federal agencies, or non-governmental third parties
6. The Authority’s intent is to share this data with entities that would like to participate the broadband grant programs. Applicants may include local municipalities, counties, ISPs or other eligible applicants. The intent is to have dataset(s) that would be shared for more effective application development processes for the Authority’s competitive grant applications.  If the data is requested by a Federal Agency/Agencies, it would be preferable to be able to share this data with said entities. 

1. Can the Pennsylvania Broadband Development Authority (Authority) provide more details on the types of entities that the BSL data will be shared with?  This question is in reference to the last requirement bullet in section I-5: “entities outside of the Authority as a part of various grant programs pertaining to broadband expansion”.  Are these other state agencies?  ISPs?  Other public or private entities (please provide details).

The Authority’s intent is to share this data with entities that would like to participate the broadband grant programs. Applicants may include local municipalities, counties, ISPs or other eligible applicants. If sharing the data with external entities would require a licensing agreement, please specify the terms and conditions under which the data could be shared. 

1. Can the Authority please confirm whether or not the following items (from the Objective section I-2) are or are not included in the scope of work?  In other words, does the Authority plan to procure wrap-around services along with ths BSL data?  
· Ongoing analysis of BSLs and broadband serviceable availability throughout the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 
· For display in static maps, online web maps/mapping applications 
· Use in grant programs pertaining to broadband infrastructure expansion, broadband access expansion, digital equity, or any broadband grant programs administered by the Authority. 

8. These are examples noted above are instances in which the dataset(s) could be leveraged. The primary objective of this RFP is to procure the geospatial data for use as a BSL fabric as outlined.  
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